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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

Jeffrey A. Meyers ‘ 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
Commissioner 603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451

Fax: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Joscph E. Ribsam, Jr.
Director

June 13, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a sole source agreement with the National Council on Crime and Delinquency
(NCCD) Children’s Research Center (CRC), (Vendor # TBD), 426 S. Yellowstone Drive, Madison, W
53719, to provide Structured Decision Making ® services in an amount not to exceed $652,925, effective
upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, through June 30, 2021. 100% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year (s) 2020 and
2021. ‘

05-95-42- Activity#421010- Accounting Unit #29570000, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES, CHILD
PROTECTION, CHILD PROTECTION

State '

Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Number | Total Amount

Year

2020 102/500731 Cont.racts for Program 4210578 $402,700
Services _

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program 4210578 $250.225
Services .

TOTAL $652,925

EXPLANATION

This request is for a sole source agreement because the Contractor has developed and owns all
intellectual property rights, title, and interest, including copyrights, in Structured Decision Making ®
(SDM®). SDM® is a case management decision-making protocol for child protective services. These
tools consists of various actuarial tools, including but not limited to Intake Screen In Criteria, Intake
Response Priority, Assessment Safety Assessments, Assessment Risk Assessment, Family Service in-
home Risk Review and Family Service Reunification Risk Review. The National Council on Crime and



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

Delinquency will work with the Department's Division for Children, Youth and Families to customize these -
tools for use in New Hampshire and will create a manual to support the tools and certify the Division’s
automated versions of the tools. This proprietary model assesses for safety and risk and guides decision-
making at key points during work with families with whom child abuse and/or neglect have been alleged
or identified.

Through an existing project agreement with the Department, the Contractor developed a New
Hampshire Integrated Assessment (NHIA) SDM® Management Report that outlines baseline SODM®
fidelity indicators, which are a measure of adherence to the implementation guidelines for SDM®. The
initial funding for this project, which was provided by Casey Family Programs, Inc., is being discontinued.
This sole source agreement will allow the Department to provide funding to continue this important project
to serve New Hampshire’s vulnerable children and youth who are most at risk of abuse and/or neglect.

Under this Agreement, the Contractor and the Department will continue to work collaboratively to
update, customize, and implement the SDM® intake, assessment and family service tools to assist the
Department in enhancing its child welfare system through the utilization of evidence-based tools.
Updating child protection practices will better meet the needs of children, youth, and families in New
Hampshire. Utilizing these updated tools will support decisions made at key points during the intake,
assessment and family 'service process in order to improve safety for children and youth and provide
services to the most at risk families. As a result of this work, the Department will incorporate policy
changes to streamline the intake and assessment processes and to ensure staff and resources are being
focused on the highest risk families.

“w

in recent years, the Department has been the subject of several external audits/reviews. Both
the Quality Assurance Review of DCYF, released in December of 2016, and the Child and Family
Services Review, conducted in 2018; found the Department needs to improve in its assessments and
managing of safety and risk. Currently, data shows that high or very high families are identified at the
intake level, but so are low and moderate risk families. This makes sense, as intake staff are currently
unable to obtain all information necessary to accurately assess for risk. However, during assessments,
high and very high families are more often receiving services through Court and Voluntary cases (with
highest risk families most likely to require court proceedings). This is a trend that is best case practice,
but based on Department data, there is still room for improvement. Updating the SDM®  tools will
significantly improve this, especially because these changes will be more closely tied to policy changes
regarding decision-making for servicing families.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:

e The services provided by the Contractor shall meet the Recommendation 19 from the
Quality Assurance Review of DCYF that was made final in 2016, to re-conceptualize the
process of identifying safety threats and risks of harm associated with i mcomlng reports of

- maltreatment.

» The Contractor shall assist the Department in meeting mandates for the Program
Improvement Plan from the Child and Family Services Review, which identifies the need
for improved assessment and management of the safety and risk for children and youth.
It mandates for improvement are not met, the Department is subject to financial penalties.
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» The Contractor’s work in this agreement will satisfy the safety and risk assessment
objective set forth in the Department’s Division of Child and Family Services Plan (or “5-
Year Plan”). .

As referenced in Exhibit A of this contract, the Department has the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor-and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department's ability
to improve child safety and reduce child abuse and neglect, including -fatalities, will be significantly
diminished.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

In the event that the General Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program. '

Respectfully submitted,

ommissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence. ,
!



Subject: §5-2020-DCYF- ured Decist

. FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and al! of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
National Council on Crime and Delinquency (NCCD) Children's

Research Center (CRC)

1.4 Contractor Address

426 S. Yellowstone Drive, Madison, W1 53719

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number

800-306-6223 05-095-042-421010-29570000

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2021 $652,925

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

Contractor Si

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Kodnerine B TAr%, C€D

on 6liofa

indiceted in block 1,12,

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of W}{ e 5N, County of Dane.

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

ustice of the Peac

1371 Signature of Notary Public

el

Pm«luﬁg Notaru ¥,

blic.

& sy, 4514

l.]mtle ﬁtate Dgency Signatory

1.16

By:

Approva“hc N.H. Departmentof Administration, Division of Personnel (if dpplicable)

-

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by t

By:

Attorney Genera), (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

o bl

1.18

By:

Approval by the Géverfior and Executive Council (if applicable)

On;
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.,
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued approptiation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment unti! such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. ’
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, ot national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL,

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement. i
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or.more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

- 8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or '
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A,

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in ali
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Centractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. Nong of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer 10
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation').

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
ot the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of maiting by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in fuli force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be exccuted in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement 50 as to achieve compliance therewith,

For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the National Council
on Crime and Delinquency Children’s Research Center as a Contractor, in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

This Agreement terminates and supersedes all existing project agreements and data
sharing agreements between the parties regarding Structured Decision Making®.

2. Scope of Services

21,

2.2.

2.3

24

2.5.

The Contractor has developed and owns all intellectual property rights, title, and
interest, including copyrights, in Structured Decision Making ® (SDM®), a case
management decision-making protocol for child protective services, adult protective
services, family prevention services, and substitute care providers consisting of various
components, including but not limited to screening criteria, risk assessment, policies,
procedures, manuals and software. This proprietary model assesses for safety and
risk and guides decision-making at key points during work with families with whom child
abuse and/or neglect have been alleged/identified.

The Contractor hereby grants to the Department a nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide,
fully paid-up license to reproduce, install, and display SDM® for its internal purposes
with no sub-licensing rights.

The Department agrees to assign all its rights, title, and interest in any modifications or
additions to SDM® that it authors, solely or with NCCD, to NCCD for no additional
consideration. The Contractor will grant back to the Department a nonexclusive,
perpetual, worldwide, fully paid-up license to use such modifications or additions for its
internal purposes with no sublicensing rights.

Through an existing project agreement with the Department, the Contractor developed
a New Hampshire Integrated Assessment (NHIA) SDM® Management Report that
outlines baseline SDM® fidelity indicators, which are a measure of adherence to the
implementation guidelines for SDM.

Under this Agreement, the Contractor shall update, customize, and implement the
SDM® intake, investigation, and family service assessment tools to assist the
Department in enhancing its child welfare system.

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency

Children's Research Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials E
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit A

26.

2.7.

2.8

29

2.10.

2.11.

The Contractor shall finalize the development of the SDM® Intake tools, specifically the
Screen In Criteria tool and the Response Priority tool, which will follow through with
work completed to date on these tools through the existing Agreement between the
Department and the Contractor.

The Contractor shall consult during the automation of the SDM® intake tools into the
new CCWIS electronic data system. To do this the Contractor will conduct
implementation testing of the tools within the CCWIS system, provide feedback on its
functionality, and certify it as “SDM system compliant” once the tools are functioning as
intended.

The Contractor shall develop curriculum, conduct training, and provide ongoing
coaching of staff relative to the use of the SDM® Intake tools.

The Contractor shall conduct a case review six (6) months after implementation in order
to determine if the SDM® Intake tools are being used comectly and if quality of
documentation by Intake staff has improved. Results will be provided to the
Department through a field test evaluation memo.

The Contractor shall update SDM® assessment and family services SDM® tools
regarding risk and safety assessment, reunification risk and in-home risk assessment
tools used by the Department in order to:

2.10.1. Provide structured information concerning the danger of immediate harm
to/maltreatment of a child.
2.10.2. Guide and support decisions about whether a child may remain in the

home with no intervention, may remain in the home with a safety plan in
place, or must be protectively placed.

2.10.3. Identify the risk of future maltreatment, in order to guide decisions around
the types of activities required to close an assessment, identify when
referrals to outside agencies should be made or if a case should be
opened on the family. '

2.10.4, Determine whether a case should remain open and, if so, at what level or
intensity of services.

2.10.5. Guide and support decisions about whether a child may be reunified with
a parent.

The Contractor shall update SDM® assessment and family services tools. Specifically,
the Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Conduct project start-up activities including facilitating a kickoff meeting
and other meetings with Department stakeholders. These may be in-
person or via web-based meetings.

2.11.2. Complete an SDM® Fidelity Review of how current tools are utilized.
This review will include reviewing Department policies, participating in

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency
Children's Research Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Structured Decision Making ® Services

Exhibit A

data collection activities, conducting key informant interviews, and
conducting a decision-point data review. The results will be shared in a
memo and through a meeting with Department staff.

2.11.3. Conduct a preliminary risk assessment implementation analysis to
determine if enough data is available to conduct a risk assessment
validation study. If the results are favorable, the Contractor shall complete
a risk assessment validation study to evaluate the Department’s current
practices.

2.11.4. Customize the SDM® tools including the Safety Assessment and Risk
Assessment. This will be done through partnering with Department staff
over several workgroup sessions, both in person or via web-based
meetings.

2.11.5. Conduct pre-implementation inter-rater reliability testing and coach
Department staff on field testing and evaluate the results, which will
inform the final draft of the tools.

2.11.6. Deliver a final Policy and Procedure manual to the Department that
details the policy, procedures, assessment instrument, and definitions for
the Department’'s DCYF assessments.

2.11.7. The Contractor will consuit during the automation of the SDM®
assessment tools into the new CCWIS electronic data system. To do this
the Contractor will conduct implementation testing of the tools within the
CCWIS system, provide feedback on its functionality, and certify it as
“SDM system compliant” once the tools are functioning as intended.

2.11.8. The Contractor shall develop curriculum, conduct training, and provide
ongoing coaching of staff relative to the use of the tools. Training shall be
primarily in the form of direct training for supervisors and a train-the-
trainer model for field staff. It may include direct observation and
coaching of staff and supervisors, especially around discussions of the
SDM® tools during supervision.

2.12. The Contractor shall update SDM® family services tools. Specifically, the Contractor
shall:

2.12.1. Complete an SDM® Fidelity Review of how current tools are utilized.
This.review will include reviewing Department policy, participating in data
collection/evaluation activities, conducting key informant interviews, and
conducting a decision-point data review. The results will be shared in a
memo and through a meeting with Department staff.

2.12.2. Customize the SDM® tools including the In Home Risk Review and
Reunification Risk Review tools. This will be done through partnering
with Department staff over several workgroup sessions, both in person or
via web-based meetings.

2.12.32. Conduct pre-implementation inter-rater reliability and coach Department
staff on field testing and evaluate the results, which will inform the final
draft of the tools.

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency
Children's Research Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.13.

2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

2.12.4. Deliver a final Policy and Procedure manual to the Department that
details the policy, procedures, assessment instrument, and definitions for
the Department's DCYF assessments.

2.12.5. The Contractor will consult during the automation of the SDM®
assessment tools into the new CCWIS electronic data system. To do this
the Contractor will conduct implementation testing of the tools within the
CCWIS system, provide feedback on its functionality, and certify it as
“SDM system compliant” once the tools are functioning as intended.

2.12.6. The Contractor shall develop curriculum, conduct training, and provide
ongoing coaching of staff relative to the use of the tools. Training shall be
primarily in the form of direct training for supervisors and a train-the-
trainer model for field staff. It may include direct observation and
coaching of staff and supervisors, especially around discussions of the
SDM® tools during supervision.

The Contractor may conduct a data extract review annually (for the length of this
contract), following implementation in order to determine if the SDM® assessment and
family services tools are being used correctly and if quality of documentation by staff
has improved. The Department may specify whether the Department may be named
in any subsequent published research or if the name of the Department must be
protected.

The Contractor shall provide project management and implementation support, to
include developing a concrete work-plan for the work to develop the assessment and
family services tools, conducting webinars for staff, and providing regular phone
support during and after implementation of the SDM® intake, assessment and family
services tools for Department staff. The Contractor shall also be available to the
Department staff trainers by phone, webinar, and email to clarify content and answer
questions.

The Department agrees to provide access to SACWIS (Bridges)/CCWIS (which will be
known as Granite Families once the system is updated) to enable the Contractor to
complete the terms of this Agreement. The Department agrees access to the
Bridges/SACWIS/CCWIS system will likewise be made available so case reads can be
conducted at the intake, assessment and family service level regarding the use of
SDM®. This entails having to read the entirety of these records. It is also necessary
for the SDM® tools to be certified as “SDM system compliant.”

The Department agrees to provide Observation of Child Protective Service Workers
and Child Protection Supervisors in the process of their work with families (for intake,
assessment, family service, and supervisory capacity).

The Department agrees to provide a data extract from DCYF specific to its use of intake,
assessment and family service SDM® tools, currently referred to as New Hampshire
Integrated Assessment. The data extracts will be utilized initially for the purpose of

The Nationa! Council on Crime and Delinquency
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2.18.

2.19.

2.20.

2.21.

2.22.

evaluating the current usage of SDM® tools to inform future tools and subsequent to
the new tools being utilized, data extracts will be utilized to assess the fidelity of Division
staffs’ use of the tools.

The Contractor agrees that the confidential data obtained from the Department under
this Agreement may not be used for any other purposes that are not indicated in this
Agreement. The Contractor shall comply with Exhibit K of this Agreement, entitled
“DHHS Information Security Requirements,” which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

The Contractor agrees to follow the Department's approval process for receiving
authorized access to Department systems and network access.

Each End User of the Contractor who has access to the Department's data shall
execute the End User Agreement (EUA), which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein as Appendix A. In addition:

2.20.1. The Contractor must have the signed EUA referenced above for all of its
End Users on file with the Department, prior to the Department sharing
data with User. This shall apply to any new User during the contract
period.

2.20.2. The EUA must be signed and returned to the Department by the
Contractor to track disclosures of Department data and to ensure that the
£nd User only uses the Department's data and any derivative data for the
purposes provided under the terms of this Agreement. In addition, the
Contractor shall notify the Department when a User is terminated or no
longer needs access, so that access may be terminated.

2.20.3. The User agrees to grant access to the data used by its End Users to the
authorized representatives of the Department for inspecting to confine
compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

2.204. The Contractor agrees that its End Users shall sign and comply with all
State of New Hampshire Department of Information Technology (DolT)
and Department policies and procedures, including but not limited to, the
DOIT Statewide Computer Use policy and the Department's
CCWIS/SACWIS User Access and Confidentiality Agreement.

At the sole discretion of the Department, the Contractor's employees may be subject to
background checks, based on the information systems accessed or types of data
provided. If requested, the Contractor shall submit the required background checks to
the Department in a timely manner.

The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule)
(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Business Associa

The National Council on Crime and Dalinquency
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Agreement (Exhibit |), which has been executed by the parties and is incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Project Management and Work Plan Summary

3.1

3.2,

3.3

34.

3.5.

3.6.

The Contractor shall meet with the Department within thirty (30) business days of the
contract effective date for a kick off meeting in order to, at a minimum:

31.1. Determine roles and responsibilities.

3.1.2. Develop a clear and detailed work plan that includes project deliverables
in Section 7 below, tasks to meet the project deliverables, and clear
deadlines.

3.1.3. Define a schedule for regular check-in meetings.

3.1.4. Define a process for facilitating and tracking decisions, identifying risks,

and managing and resolving issues.

The Contractor shali provide the detailed work plan for Department review in
accordance with Section 3.1.within thirty (30) days of the kick off meeting.

The Contractor shall request permission from the Department to modify the time when
activities and deliverables are to be completed in the Work Plan.

The Contractor shall receive written permission, which request shall not be
unreasonably denied, from the Department before modifying the timeframes
established in the Work Plan. :

The Contractor shall complete the phases in sequential and/or concurrent order as
specified in the Work Plan.

The proposed time frames in the detailed Work Plan represent estimated schedules
based on expected contract activities. The parties reserve the right to mutually amend
the time schedule for these activities based on progression of procurement activities,
changes in law or procedure, contingencies for the Contractor upon other entities with
which the Department may contract {ex. for the new CCWIS build), and/or other
changes or circumstances.

4. Description, Use and Disclosure of Data
4.1. The Contractor agrees the data provided by the Department will be restricted to the

following uses:

4.1.1. Evaluating the current utilization of the SDM® tools in NH in order to be
best able to make recommendations for changes to the tools. This
includes conducting a Risk Validation Study of the current SDM® tools,

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency
Children's Research Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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utilizing case reads, and assessing the use of the new tools for the
purpose of providing feedback for practice improvements.

412 Coaching utilization of the SDM® tools with fidelity, making
recommendations for practice changes including streamlining intake,
assessment and family services practices, and updating SDM® tools
utilized at key decision-making points within child protection matters
including:

4121 Observing and coaching of Child Protective Service Workers
and Child Protection Supervisors in the process of their work
with families (during intake, assessment, family service, and
when acting in a supervisory capacity).

4.1.2.2 Coaching the Department's DCYF intake staff and staff from
Wediko, with which the Department contracts for management
of the after-hours intakes; and

4.1.2.3 Evaluating the use of the new SDM® tools post implementation.

4.2 The Contractor agrees that the Department's data that is being requested is the
“minimum necessary" to carry out the stated use of the data, as defined in the Privacy
Rule and in accordance with all applicable confidentiality laws.

43 The Department will provide data to the Contractor from the following systems of
records:

4.3.2 The SACWIS (Bridges)/CCWIS client-server application system, which is
the electronic case management system utifized by the Department. This
system is being updated and will be referred to as Granite Families upon
completion.

4.3.3 A data extract specific to its use of intake, assessment and family service
SDM® tools, currently referred to as New Hampshire Integrated
Assessment.

4.4 Number of Records Involved and Data Elements

4.4.2 The exact number of records is unknown. Due to the nature of this effort,
the approximate number of records involved is unknown. The Department
agrees to provide remote access to CCWIS/SACWIS for all record types
including, referrals, assessments and cases. NCCD will have direct
access to SOM® tools through these record types in CCWIS/SACWIS.

4.4.3 The exact data elements and requirements are not known at this time.
Appendix B, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein, lists the data elements and data requirements to be shared. The

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency
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parties agree to work collaboratively to further develop and refine the data
elements and requirements consistent with this Agreement.t.

5. Duration of Agreement, Amendments and Extension

51. Effective Date: This Agreement will become effective on the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval, or July 1, 2019, whichever is later.

52. Modification and Extension: The parties may modify this Agreement at any time by
mutual written agreement, subject to approval of the Governor and Executive Council
as required. This Agreement may be extended for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement
of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The services provided by the Contractor shall meet the Recommendation 19 from the
Quality Assurance Review of DCYF that was made final in 2016, to re-conceptualize
the process of identifying safety threats and risks of harm associated with incoming
reports of maltreatment.

6.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department in meeting mandates for the Program
Improvement Plan from the Child and Family Services Review, which identifies the
need for improved assessment and management of the safety and risk for children and
youth. If mandates for improvement are not met, the Department is subject to financial
penalties.

6.3. In addition, the Contractor's work in this Agreement will satisfy the safety and risk
assessment objective set forth in the Department's Division of Child and Family
Services Plan (or “5-Year Plan”), which will be submitted by the Division to the
Children’s Bureau within the U.S. Administration for Children and Families in June of
2019.

7. Project Activity Milestones and Deliverables

7.1. The estimated dates in this section, as outlined in 7.2 below, may change to coincide
with work being completed on the Department's new CCWIS build, upon agreement of
both parties.

7.2. The Contractor shall:

7.21. Provide draft SDM® tools for the Department, including the Screen-in
Criteriaand Response Priority Tool by July 31, 2019,

7.2.2. Lead Department staff on pre-implementation inter-rater reliabitity and
field testing with the Department of the SDM® Screen-in Criteria an

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency
Children’s Research Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Response Priority tools; evaluate results and incorporate into the SDM®
tools by August 31, 2019.

7.2.3. Provide the updated intake SDM® tools, including the Screen-in Criteria
and Response Priority Tool by August 31, 2018.

7.2.4, Complete project start up meetings for SODM® assessment and family
service tools by September 30, 2019.

7.2.5. Provide consultation around the automation of the tools in the
Departments CCWIS system and ultimately certify the Department's
automated SDM® intake tools by the estimated date of November 30,
2019.

7.2.6. Develop the training curriculum for SDM® intake Tools and conduct
training one month prior to the release of the new Intake Module for
CCWIS by November 30, 2019.

7.27. Complete ongoing training and coaching of Intake staff on the use of the
tools between December 1, 2019 and January 31, 2020.

7.2.8. Complete a policy review of assessment and family services policy to
inform SDM® assessment and family service tools by October 31, 20189.

7.2.9. Complete key informant interviews to inform SDM® assessment and
family service tools by October 31, 2019.

7.2.10. Complete a decision point data review of SOM® assessment and family
service tools by December 31, 2019.

7.2.11. Hold a meeting where recommendations for SDM® assessment and
family service tools are shared with Department staff by January 31,
2020.

7.2.12. Complete a Preliminary Risk Assessment Implementation Analysis by

February 28, 2020.

7.2.143. Complete a Risk Assessment Validation Study to inform customization of
the SDM® tools by April 30, 2020.

7.2.14. Complete a post-implementation case review of the use of SDM® Intake
tools by May 30, 2020.

7.2.15. Complete draft SDM® assessment tools, including Risk and Safety
Assessments, tools used by the Department by May 30, 2020.

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency
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7.2.16. Lead Department staff on pre-implementation inter-rater reliability of the
SDM® Risk and Safety assessment tools. Evaluate results of this and
incorporate into the SDM® tools by June 30, 2020.

7.2.17. Lead Department staff on field testing of the SDM® assessment tools in
order to inform the final version of the tool and manual by June 30,
2020.

7.2.18. Provide consultation around the automation of the tools in the
" Departments CCWIS system and ultimately certify the SDM® assessment
Tools by September 30, 2021.

7.2.19. Create the training curriculum for SDM® Assessment Tools by October
31, 2020.
7.2.20. Conduct training one month prior to the release of the new Assessment

Module for CCWIS by November 30, 2020. Training to include training
supervisors and others through a train-the-trainer format.

7.2.21. Create draft SDM® family services tools, including the In-home Risk
Review and Reunification Risk Review by June 30, 2020.

7.2.22. Lead Department staff on pre-implementation inter-rater reliability of the
SDM® family service tools, In-home Risk Review and Reunification Risk
Review. Evaluate results of this and incorporate into the SDM® tools by
August 31, 2020.

7.2.23. Lead Department staff on Field Testing of the SDM® family service tools
in order to inform the final version of the tool and manual by October 31,

2020.

7.2.24. Create training curriculum for SDM® family service tools by November
30, 2020.

7.2.25. Conduct training one month prior to the release of the new family service

module for CCWIS by June 30, 2021. Training to include training
supervisors and a train-the-trainer format.

7.2.26. Provide consultation around the automation of the tools in the
Departments CCWIS system and ultimately certify the SDM® family
service tools by June 30, 2021.

7.2.27. Provide coaching sessions for Supervisors post implementation of the
SDM® tools by June 30, 2021.

The National Council on Crime and Delinquency
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APPENDIX B
DATA ELEMENTS AND DATA REQUIREMENTS

Data Elements Involved

e Date-of-Birth

Data Requirements

Data requirements necessary to complete the SDM implementation report include the following.

1. Report information
. Repdrt identifier

» Any other identifiers required to match data (e.g., client ID, investigation ID)
from this table to other tables

Report dates (i.e., date the report was received and date it closed)

Screening decision (i.e., whether report was investigated)
» Response priority of the report

Differential response data

2. Investigation characteristics

* Investigation identifier

Any other identifiers required to link data from this table to other tables

Investigation dates (i.e., date the investigation began and date it ended)

Allegation(s)

Alleged victim information {person identifier for alleged victim[s], ethnicity,
gender, and age of victim[s])

Perpetrator information (person identifier, relationship to alleged victim[s], age,
and ethnicity)

Substantiation decision

¢ Decision to open an ongoing services case following investigation

e Services offered following the investigation, such as in-home versus out-of-home
placement

Child injuries
County/district/regional information

3. Family characteristics
Any unifying family identifier, if it exists in the system

e  Any other identifiers required to match data (e.g., client ID,
investigation ID) from this table to other tables

« Demographic information for caregivers and all children in the home



Any behavior or other observations collected electronically, such as the
following (note that some of these behaviors may only be captured on the
SDM risk assessment):

Caregiver substance abuse problem (drugs or alcohol) (DHHS will provide abuse
neglect indicator in lieu of)
Homelessness

Physically unsafe housing

Caregiver providing inconsistent physical care

Caregiver mental health problems, excluding HIPPA-protected information
Domestic violence history

Caregiver was abused/neglected as a child

Caregiver provides insufficient emotional/psychological support

Caregiver uses excessive/inappropriate discipline

Caregiver is domineering

Caregiver blames child or justifies maltreatment

If available, date characteristic was identified/ceased to exist

4. Child.characteristic flags (do not include HIPAA-protected data)

Child identifier

Child is medically fragile/diagnosed with failure to thrive

Developmental or physical disability of child

Positive toxicology screening at birth (DHHS will provide abuse neglect indicator in
lieu of)

Delinquency history

Mental health/behavioral problem

5. Ongoing services (i.e., ongoing services provided by DHHS including in home or out of home)

Child identifier
Other identifiers required to link data (e.g., link to initiating investigation) from this

table to other tables

Ongoing service case start and end dates
Type of service (in home, out of home, permanent placement, etc.)
Voluntary status, if available

5. Placement characteristics

Child identifier of child removed

Links to initiating investigation, if available

Removal start and end dates

Removal reason

Removal end reason

Placement home date(s) and home type(s) within removal (i.e., start date, end date,
placement home type for each placement home setting client placed in during
removal)

Placement change reason



7. Service referrals (e.g.. community referrals), if any exist
e Service type
+  Date of services
s Linkto client ID, investigation ID, case 1D, and/or removal ID, if available

8. For each $SDM assessment (meaning all tools: Intake Screen In Criteria, Intake
Response Priority Leve), Safety Assessment, Safety Review, Risk Assessment, In-
home Risk Review, and Reunification Risk Review) ever recorded, provide the
following

Assessment identifier

Assessment date

Investigation and/or case identifier to link the SDM assessment
Client(s) assessed (i.e., child and caregiver person identifiers)
All assessment item responses

Resulting decision

Overrides

Final decision

Data should be pulled for at least 10 years prior to the sample dates. it is anticipated that FY 2016-17 or
CY 2017 sample period will be used, depending when the data are pulled.

The number of records to be a 12-month sample of all referrals that had either a founded or unfounded
disposition as well as a completed risk tool.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation, for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with 100% General Funds.
Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices within twenty (20) days from the date in Section 3.2.3
below for payment of accepted Deliverables according to the Price and Payment Schedule
in Exhibit B-1 of this agreement.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure invoices are in a format specified by the Department and
include detailed information, as follows:

3.2.1. Identification of the completed Deliverable;
3.2.2. The Deliverable due date;

3.2.3. The Deliverable completion date; and
3.2.4. The Deliverable acceptance date.

3.3. Upon acceptance by the State of the Deliverable and a properly documented and approved
invoice, the State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and only if sufficient funds
are available.

4. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to State-funded programs
and services and have records available for Department review, as requested.

5. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
deyfinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Children, Youth and Families
129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301

7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal
or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the services have not
been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.
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Exhibit B-1, Price and Payment Schedule

State  Fiscal Year 2020:
Governor and Executive Council
Approval through June 30, 2020

Deliverable Description

Deliverable Due Date

Firm Fixed Price

Intake tools Pre-Implementation | August 31, 2019 $17,800
IRR and Field Testing & final

tools

Project start-up activities September 30, 2019 $25,400
SDM fidelity review & pre- October 31, 2019 $17,600
project planning: policy review

SDM fidelity review & pre- October 31, 2019 $27,600
project planning: data collection

SDM fidelity review & pre- December 31, 2019 $19,100
project planning: decision-point

data reviews

Intake tools curriculum January 31, 2020 $30,900
development, training and

coaching

SDM fidelity review & pre- January 31, 2020 $20,400
project planning:

recommendation meeting

Preliminary risk assessment February 28, 2020 $20,000
analysis

Risk assessment validation April 30, 2020 $60,000
study

Intake tools post-implementation | May 30, 2020 $22,700
case review ‘

Tool customization (safety and May 30, 2020 $39,550
risk assessments)

Tool customization (in-home risk | June 30, 2020 $39,550

review and reunification risk
review assessments)

NCCD Children's Research Center {CRC)
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Exhibit B-1, Price and Payment Schedule

Inter-rater Reliability Testing June 30, 2020 $29,000
{Assessment tools)

Field test/tool finalization June 30, 2020 $21,100
{Assessment tools)

Project management June 30, 2020 $12,000
Total $402,700

State Fiscal Year 2021:
Governor and Executive

Council Approval through June
30, 2021

Deliverable Description

Deliverable Due Date

Firm Fixed Price

Inter-rater reliability testing

(Family Service tools) August 31, 2020 $29,000
Field test/tool finalization October 31, 2020 $21,100
(Family Service tools)

Training curriculum November 30, 2020 $66,400
development

Conducting training (train-the- | June 30, 2021 $60,600
trainer model)

Supervisor training/coaching June 30, 2021 $11,125
session

Project management June 30, 2021 $12,000
SDM certification June 30, 2021 $50,000
Total $250,225

NCCD Children’s Research Center (CRC)
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require. )

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out

" an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair

hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to inefigible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementi
excess of costs;
Exhibit C ~ Speclal Provislons Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be .
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services,

9. Audit; Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Gevernmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to a!l reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directty connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient
attorney or guardian.

Exhiblt C - Special Provisions Contractor Initlals
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shalt be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report; A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materiais produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP}: The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 5Q-or
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17.

18.

18.

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEQP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Cerification Form to the QCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEQP, Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOQOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

Limited English Proficiency {LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 131686, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 {currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities andreporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhiblt C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take correc_tive action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS:; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

206. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contraclor Initials
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions
1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of
the State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in
whole or in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation
or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or
availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action
that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction,
termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have
the right to withhold payment untii such funds become available, if ever. The State
shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source
or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions,
Account Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 Either party may unilaterally terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason,
thirty (30) days after giving the other party written notice that the party is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement, or at a later date specified in the
notice. However, in no instance shall such a termination be effective prior to the
return or destruction of alt Confidential Data provided to the Contractor by the
Department or derived from the Confidential Data obtained under the terms of this
Agreement. The Contractor agrees that it has the duty to protect and maintain
the privacy and security of Confidential Data and that duty must continue in full
force and effect until such Confidential Data is returned and/or destroyed and
access to the CCWIS/SACWIS and/or extracted data is terminated. For any
Confidential Data or derivative data that destruction is not feasible for, the privacy
and security requirements of this Agreement must survive the termination or
expiration of this Agreement.

10.2 If the Department determines that there was or may have been an Incident or
Breach of the Confidential Data or individually identifiable derivative data or
information by the User, its End Users, subcontractors and/or agents that violates
the terms of this Agreement, DHHS may, in its sole discretion, immediately and
unilaterally terminate this Agreement upon notice to the Contractor, and
immediately revoke all access to the CCWIS/SACWIS and/or extracted data. The
Contractor agrees to cease using and return and/or destroy all Confidential Data
and derivatives therefrom in its possession, End Users' subcontractors'/agents’
possession, immediately upon notice of termination for an Incident or Breach. User
agrees that it has the duty to protect and maintain the privacy and security of
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Confidential Data and that duty must continue in full force and effect until such data
is returned and/or destroyed. For any such data that return/destruction is not
feasible, the privacy and security requirements of this Agreement shall survive the
termination.

10.3 In the event of an early termination for any reason, the Contractor shall, within
fifteen (15) days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to the
return and/or destruction of Confidential data provided to the Contractor by the
Department or derived from the Confidential Data obtained under the terms of this
Agreement.

10.4

CUHDHHSD50418

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide

detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

2. Revisions to Standard Exhibits
2.1 Exhibit C, Special Provisions

2.1.1

21.2
2.1.3
2.1.4
2.1.5
2.1.6

217

2.1.8
2.1.9

Paragraph 1, Compliance with Federal and State Laws, is deleted in its
entirety.

Paragraph 2, Time and Manner of Determination, is deleted in its entirety.
Paragraph 3, Documentation, is deleted in its entirety.

Paragraph 4, Fair Hearings, is deleted in-its entirety.

Paragraph 6, Retroactive Payments, is deleted in its entirety.

Paragraph 7, Conditions of Purchase, and its subparagraphs, are deleted in
their entirety.

Paragraph 8, Maintenance of Records; Subparagraph 8.1, Fiscal Records, is
replaced as follows:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in
the performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by
the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained
in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which
sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and to
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
and requisitions for materials.

Subparagraphs 8.2 and 8.3 of Paragraph 8 are deleted in their entirety.
Paragraph 15, Operation of Facilities, is deleted in its entirety.
Paragraph 17, Limited English Proficiency, is deleted in its entirety.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shali be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.4. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workptace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); '

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local heatth,
law enforcement, or other appropnate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

b-161]
Date 7 : e H. bk
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.5.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title 1V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in-
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). '

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falils to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

( o109 { <
Date Bane/ o Mnecide— th.Yark
T|tle: C/eo
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CERT|FICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contracter's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction,

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. [f it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract} is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances,

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” "primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11, The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency,

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b}
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

L-10-19) | L

Date Eme: ing B .Yary
Title:

CEOD
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Strests Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federa! funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements,

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or aclivity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation,;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs}; 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regutations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Vendor Initl
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: .

Lp-10-19

Title Ceo
Exhibit G
Vendor Initia
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
ExhibitH

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

0-10-19

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity”
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

|
{1 Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Enptity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e.. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. ‘“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

32014 Exhibit | Vender Initlal
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Exhibit |

(2)

32014 Exhibit | Vendor Initi ”A

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at'45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. -

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate,;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. |f Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busin iﬁ"

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement
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(3}

32014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify'the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return-or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entlty
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ass
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivingy

Exhiblt | Vendor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’'s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. .

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PH!
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thoge
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busine

Exhibit | Vendor Initials
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Exhibit1

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

{5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be res
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

32014 Exhibit I Vendor Initials
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

D artment of Health and Human Services I\)( Q : D —

mdﬂw _ Name of $ie Ven

Biggature of AuthoriZed Representative
Yalrerine B Yark

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Title 01‘é Art_;_?rized Representative Title of Authorized Representative |
Date N Date s
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to repart on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those -

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SCOENDNR LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the manth, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

Date

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance O’
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FORM A

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity is: _OMQ_

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, andfor cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

x NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Vendor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as ail medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally ldentifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI}, Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI}, and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4, “End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire’s Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information” {or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 CF.R. §
160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data. '

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

. .
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN} when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9, Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data wil!
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

I. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
¢cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {(or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. .

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain-appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/'vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New

- Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized perseons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section |V above.

h. in all other instances Confidentiai Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. '

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFQRMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., IConcord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TPD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

June 25, 2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency’s request to enter into a s'ole source contract with the National Council on
Crime and Delinquency (NCCD) Children’s Research Center (CRC) as described below and referenced
as DolT No. 2019-098.

This is a request to enter into an agreement to provide funding to continue the New
Hampshire Integrated Assessment (NHIA) SOM® Management Report that outlines
baseline SDM® fidelity indicators, which are a measure of adherence to the
implementation guidelines for SDM®. The Contractor and the Department will continue
to work collaboratively to update, custom'ize, and implement the SDM® intake
assessment, investigation assessment, and ong'oing assessments to assist the Department
in enhancing its child welfare system through the use of evidence-based tools.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed $652,925.00, and shall become effective July
1, 2019 or upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later,
through June 30, 2021.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council forlapproval.

Sincerely,
% 7z 3‘“., FoR
Dénis Goulet

DG/kaf
DolT #2019-098

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow”




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Corporate Resolution

I, Theron T Bowman, Sr_, hereby certify that I am duly elected Clerk/Secretary of
(Name) .
NCCD . I hereby certify the following is a true copy of a vote taken at
(Name of Corporation or LLC) .

a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on_June 5 , 2019

at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Katherine H. Park, CEO, Laurie Wetzel, CFO/COQ. Angie Wollf,
CPO, and Toni Aleman, Director of Human Resources & Administration

(Name and Title)
duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of

NCCD with the State of New Hampshire and any of
(Name of Corporation or LLC)

its agencies or departments and further is autﬁorized to execﬁte any
documents which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect
the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full
force and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as
evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that
they.have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New

Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

DATED: Jb/Z//20/9 ATTEST:

THeron T Bowman,
Secretary

Subscribed and Sworn before me this

S, %"5: Natary Public, State of Texss
X ﬁﬂ{; Comm. Expires 02-06-2021

FOSE Notary ID 126796476
gk

iy

SV R, MATT MCGINN

Wity
NO

\S*

A\
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National Councilon
Crime & Delinquency

NCCD

RESOLUTION

By resolution of the majority of the Board of Directors appointed pursuant to the bylaws of the
National Councit on Crime and Delinquency (NCCD), the following was adopted and recorded in
the minute books of said corporation on this the 5th day of June 2019, in accord with and
pursuant to the charter and bylaws of said corporation, and is now in full force and effect:

RESOLVED, that:

The Board of Directors confirms that it delegates the authority to negotiate and execute
contracts to certain active Executive Officers and Staff of the corporation.

The following Executive Officers and Staff of NCCD are confirmed in their authority to engage in

legal and binding contractual arrangements on behalf of the corporation:

Katherine H. Park Laurie Wetzel _ ’

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer/Chief Operating Officer
Angela Wolf Toni Aleman

Chief Program Officer Director of Human Resources 8 Administration

This resolution rémoyes delegation from Michael Osterberg.

APPROVED, on behalf of the NCCD Board of Directors:

L3

Board Sec'retary Date -

w—%’/ 040520, Vi

NCCD promotes just and equitable sociel systems for individuals, fomilies, and communities through research, public policy, and practice.

®  (a00) 306-6223 & wwwnccdglobalorg ¥4 info@ncedglobal.org W ®NCCDtweets



- Yo y DATE (MMDO/YYYY)
A'CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

6/4/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lleu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER & ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ Star Melry
Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. PHONE FAX
Insurance Brokers of CA. LIC. # 0726293 i %{ﬁ Ext); 818.539.8623 l (A/C, Ho|: 818.539.8723
505 N Brand Blvd, Suite 600 > ADDRESS; Star Metry@ajg.com 7
Glendale CA 91203 INSURER(8) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 18058
INSURED . )  NATICOU-1 INSURER B : Oak River Insurance Company ) 34630
National Council on Crime and Delinguency
520 3rd Street Ste 101 Nsurer ¢ : BCS Insurance Company 38245
Qakliand, CA 94607 INSURER D :
INSURERE: . _
INSURERF ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 211082491 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WYD POLICY NUMBER [MMIDDIYYYY) | (MMIDBIYYYY) LIMITS
A | X | cOMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1897734 10/14/2018 | 10M14/2018 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
[DAMAGE TO RENTED ,
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR ‘ PREMISES {En pccurrence) | $ 100,000
MED EXP (Any one parson} $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | poucy o [ ]oc _ PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: Employse Benefits $ 1M Each/$1M Agg
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1897734 10/14/2018 | 1014/2019 | oo tnieony $ 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per person) | §
OWNED SCHEDULED
D ALY ] SceD BODILY INJURY {Per accident}| $
% | HIRED % | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|7 | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | {Per accidant)
$
A | X [umMBRELLALIAB X | occur PHUB651841 10/14/2018 | 10/14/2019 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 9,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 9.000.000
oeo | X | revewmions 30 000 :
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION NAWC907776 10/14/2018 | 10472019 |X | BER oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY vIN | Starure | &8
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? D NIA
{Mandatory in NH} E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE! § 1,000,000
i yes, describs under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below £.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
A | Profassional Liability PHPK1897734 10/14/2018 | 10/14/2019 ) Per Claim \ Aggregate $1M Each/$2M Agg
C | Cyber Liability RPS-P-50135008M 10/14/2016 | 10/14/2019 [PerClaim $5.000,000
Retantion SS.OQO
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, mey be atiached if more space is required)

Crime Coverage -

Policy#: PHSD1389350

Carrier: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

Policy Dates: 10/14/2018 - 10/14/2019

Employee theft: Limit:$500,000 ,Deductible:$10,000

ERISA: Limit:$500.000

For%tery or Alteration: Limit: $500,000 ,Deductible:$10,000

Theft of money and securities: Limit:$100,000 ,Deductitle; $5,000
See Attached. ..

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES 8E CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE OELIVERED IN

State of New Hampshire ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street , AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Concord NH 03301 :

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) ‘The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: NATICOU-21

LOC #:
g o

ACORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1
AGENCY NAMED INSURED ,
Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. National Council on Crime and Delinquency

520 3rd Street Ste 101
POLICY NUMBER Qakland, CA 94607
CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Money and Securlties: Limi:$100,000 ,Deductible:$5,000
Money orders and counterfeil paper currency: Limit2$100,000 ,Deductible:$5,000
Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud (Other): Limit:$100,000 ,Ceducltible:$5,000

Evidence of Coverage.

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.

ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Council on Crime & Delinquency, a New York
nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management s Resgqnsibﬂily for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the
United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relévant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

CerTiFIED PusLIC ACCOUNTANTS, 90 New Montgomery. 11th Flaoe San Francisco, California 94105
areimariseat Telephone 415 957 9999  Facsimile 415 957 1629 heepi//www.lvhj.com
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Qpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of National Council on Crime & Delinquency as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. -

Repori on Supplementary fnformation

Qur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards on page 19 as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Regquirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
Jfor Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. [n our

_opinion, the information is fairly stated in all matertal respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. !

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated January 17, 2019 on
our consideration of National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal contrel over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of National Council on
Crime & Delinquency’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering National Council on Crime &
Delinquency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

C;L{f,ﬂi yone Huten. M@/yw LLP

January 17, 2019



NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY

{4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation}
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 3,567,084 $ 2,258,382
Receivables (Note 3):
Grants, net 2,859,185 2,437,650
Unbilled 1,039,815 924214
Other 532 102
Investments (Note 4) 227,462 234,910
Prepaid expenses 300,571 282,142
Total current assets 7,994,649 6,137,400
Property and equipment — net (Note 5) 2,276,449 2,099,593
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust (Note 4) 226,729 221,953
Other assets (Note 13) 164,866 17,500
Total assets $ 10,662,693 $ 8,476,446
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 758,730 $ 621,665
Accrued expenses 714,186 1,092,745
Deferred revenue (Note 8) 2,553,350 1,911,146
Deferred rent (Note 7} 50,297 76,999
Capital lease obligation — current portion {Naote 7) 57,845 -
Notes payable - current portion {(Note 6) 146,766 140,225
Other liabilities — current portion {Note 13) 660,708 -
Total current liabilities 4,941,882 3,842,780
Capital lease obligation — net of current portion (Note 7) 126,447 -
Notes payable — net of current portion (Note 6) 1,106,190 1,250,902
Other liabilities — net of current portion (Note 13) 160,700 -
Total liabilities 6,335,219 5,093,682
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 3,507,800 2,768,581
With donor restrictions (Notes 4 and 9) 819,674 614,183
Total net assets 4,327,474 3,382,764
Total liabilities and net assets $ 10,662,693 $ 8,476,446

/

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Support and revenue:
Contract income
Contributions
[n-kind donations
Royalties
Investment income (loss)
Other income
Total support and revenue

Net assets released from restrictions:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions (Note 9)

Total support and revenue

Expenscs:

Program services:
Adult Criminal Justice
Juvenile Justice
Child Welfare
Adult Protective Services
Education

Supporting services:
Management and gencral
Fundraising

Total expenses
Change in net assets
Nel assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY

(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

Without With Without With

Donor Donor Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

- $ 14,837,609 $ : - $ 14,837,609 £ 14,734,406 5 - £ 14,734,406
189,131 451,470 640,601 14,417 258,530 272,947
37,985 - 37,985 59,254 - 59,254
73 - 73 129 - 129
(5,369) 4,776 (593) 4,351 14,851 19,202
2,782 - 2,782 5177 - 5,177
15,062,211 456,246 15,518,457 14,817,734 273,381 15,091,115
250,755 (250,755) - 586,026 (586,026) -
15,312,966 205,491 15,518,457 15,403,760 (312,645) 15,091,115
1,520,421 - 1,520,421 2,022,948 - 2,022.948
1,337,158 - 1,337,158 1,593,909 - 1,593,909
6,999,582 - 6,999,582 7,091,629 - 7,091,629
291,091 - 291,091 138,962 - 138,962
170,528 - 170,528 177,143 - 177,143
4.12511¢ - 4125110 4,§3é,l52 - 4,532,152
129,857 - 129,857 151,274 - 151,274
14,573,747 - 14,573,747 " 15,708,007 - 15,708,017
739,219 ' 205,491 044,710 (304,257 (312,645} (616,902)
2,768,581 614,183 3,382,764 3,072,838 926,828 3,999,666
$ 3,507,800 $ 819,674 $ 4327474 $ 2,768,581 $ 614,183 $ 3,382,764

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Salaries and related expenses
Employee benefits and payroll taxes

Toual salarics and related expenses

Consullants

Legal

Travel

Equipment

Occupancy costs
Communications

Supplies

Foreign currency ransaction loss
Conferences and meetings
Interest

In-kind goods and services
Insurence

Postage end shipping

Copying 2nd printing

Return of unspent restricted contributions
Misceltaneots

Total expenses before depreciation
Depreciation

Total expenses

NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY

(4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
P P

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018
Program Services Supporting Services
Adult © Adult Toial Total
Criminat Juvenile Chitd Protective Program Managemens Supporting
Justice Justice Welfare Services FEdecation Services el Gieneral Fundraising Services Toral

§ 264950 $ 4894650 § 3645918 $ 173,056 $ 108227 5 4681801 S 2142012 s 54,787 5 2,196,799 $ 6,878,500
83.945 155.137 1,155,147 54.830 34,290 1.483.349 702,671 17,158 720,029 2,203,378
‘348.895 044,787 4,801,065 ) 227,886 142,517 6,165,150 2,844,683 72,145 2916828 9081978
1,040,353 552,450 791,034 9,285 12,765 2,405,887 244,580 45,000 289,580 2,695.467
- - 14,812 - - 14.812 41,982 - 41,982 56,794
60,245 78,861 506,166 33,987 75 679,334 164,120 - 164,120 843,454
ER N LY 6,383 510,354 2,037 1,719 523622 160,413 645 161,078 684,700
18,506 34 200 134,775 12,087 7,559 207,127 148,989 3,827 152,816 359,943
5.461 19,092 77,023 3,609 2,231 98,410 52,673 7.188 59,861 1582717
2,238 3441 26,586 1,135 1,180 34,580 50,758 425 51,183 85,763
417 3,057 3.776 30 - 7.1%0 17,400 - 27,400 34,680
B - - - - - 70,957 - 70,957 70,957
37.685 - 300 - - 37,985 - - - 37,985
! - - - - - - 72410 - 12,410 72410
2,781 2,631 12,138 469 2,19% 0.7 9,939 192 10,131 30,348
721 1,256 9,763 439 M 12,453 6,094 139 6,233 18,686
. - - 127 - 127 10,373 256 10.569 10,796
1,520,421 1,337,158 6,887,792 291,091 170,528 10,206,990 3,905,391 129,857 4,035,248 14,242,238
- - 111,790 - - 111,790 219,719 - 219719 331,509
$ 1520421 $ 1,337,158 $ 6,999,582 £ 291,091 5 170,528 $ 10,318,780 $ 4125110  § 129857 $ 4,254,967 $ 14,573,747

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

5



Salaries and retared expenses
Employee benefits and payroll taxes

Toxal salaries and related expenses

Consultants
Legal
Travel
Equipment
Occupancy costs
Communications
Supplies
Foreign currency wransaction loss
Conferences and meetings
[mterest
In-kind goods and services
. [nsurance
Postage and shipping
Copying and printing
Retumn of unspent restricted costributions
Miscellaneous

Total expenses before depreciation
Depreciation

Total expenses

NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY

(4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2017
Program Services Supporting Services
Aduit Aclult Toial Toal
Criminal Juvenile Chiled Protective Program Management Supporting
Justice Justice Welfare Services Education Services and General Fundraising Services Toral
S 449724 $ 816,643 $ 3628243 s 20,100 $ 119,566 5§ 5104276 $ 2,093,397 s 34,626 S 2,128,023 $ 7232299
136,546 247 951 1,101,616 27,357 36,303 1,549.773 657,375 10,513 667,888 2,217,661
586,270 1,064 594 4,729,859 117457 155,869 6,654,049 2,750,772 45,139 2795911 9,449 9560
1,247,411 271,926 866,045 - 4,600 2,389,982 599,334 5,009 604,433 25994415
B - - - - - 23,037 - 23,037 23,037
85988 154,659 576.625 10,718 831 828,861 268,649 59,886 328,535 1,157,356
1,587 3,97 559,629 134 187 565,513 149.863 381 150,244 715,757
T 32439 58,905 - 141,831 6,499 8,624 248,298 152,277 2498 154,775 403,073
12,820 12,055 492,655 2,460 3226 140,216 69,648 664 70,312 210,528
4,015 5,424 24,734 519 972 35,674 69,656 3,368 73,024 108,698
- - 3.713 - - 3713 . - - 313
560 3,862 8.96% 183 - 13,574 55.586 27,532 83,118 96,692
. . - - - - 73,900 73,900 73,960
47,535 : - 11,719 - - 59,254 B - - 59,254
. - - - - - 83,037 - §3,037 £3,037
1,733 4,234 18,203 484 2,184 26,838 112,976 958 13,934 40,772
2,334 4,234 19,528 498 650 27,244 13,018 1.571 14,589 41,833
- - - - - - 31,079 - 31,079 31,079
256 - - - - 256 6,190 4,178 - 10,368 10,624
2,022,948 1,593,909 7,060,510 138,962 177,143 10,993,472 4,359,022 151,274 4,510,296 15,503,768
- - 31.119 - - - 31119 173,130 - 173,130 204,249
$ 2021948 S 1,593,909 $ 7.091.629 3 138962 S 177143 $ 11,024,591 £ 4,532,152 5 151,214 $ 4,683,426 $ 15,708,017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial siatements.
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NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
(4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ 944710 $ (616,902)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 331,509 204,249
Gain on beneficial interest in perpetual trust (4,776) (14,851)
(Increase) decrease in assets: '
Grants receivable (421,535} 1,216,713
Unbilled receivable - : (115,601) (103,559)
Other receivable ) (430) 544
Prepaid expenses (18,429} (142,261)
Other assets 174,033 3,000
Increase (decrease) in liabilities: : :
Accounts payable . 137,065 (342,606)
Accrued expenses {41,659) 272,245
Deferred revenue 642,204 (395,362)
Deferred rent {26,702) (19,100)
Total adjustments 655,679 679,012
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,600,389 62,110
Cash flows from investing activities: ]
Net decrease (increase) in investments 7,448 (2,370)
Purchase of property and equipment (117,377) {176,876)
Net cash used in investing activities (109,929) (179,246}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of notes payable . (138,171) (128.170)
Payment of capital lease (43,587) -
Net cash used in financing activities (181,758) (128,170}
Net increase {decrease) in cash 1,308,702 (245,306)
Cash, beginning of year 2,258,182 2,503,688
Cash, end of year $ 3,567,084 $ 2,258,382
Supplementary information:
Cash paid for interest 3 70,957 $ 73,900
Noncash investing and.financing activities: :
Assets acquired by assuming other liabilities 3 484508 -8 -
Assels acquired through capital leases § 227879 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.”

7



NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
{4 New York Nonprafit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

—

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The National Council on Crime & Delinquency (NCCD) was incorporated in New York en October 1, 1907, as
a public benefit corporation. NCCD promotes just and equitable social systems for individuals, families and
communities through research, public policy and practice. NCCD conducts its programs and operations nationally and
internationally through offices in Oakland, California; Washington, D.C.; and Madison, Wisconsin.

NCCD is involved in the following projects:
Adult Criminal Justice

NCCD works with states, counties, legislators, law enforcement, and public and private organizations to
demonstrate, test, and evaluate innovative alternatives to ineffective and costly adult criminal justice practices. NCCD's
goals in adult criminal justice are to build more efficient and humane practices in the adult system, while stressing
non-incarceration and community-based alternatives to incarceration.

Juvenile Justice

NCCD develops research, programs, and policies that promote fair, effective, and age appropriate treatment of
youth. NCCD works to improve young people's chances to become successful. For those incarcerated, NCCD wants
every youth in the juvenile justice system to be safe and healthy, to have the opportunity for academic success, to
develop an understanding of his or her behavior, and to gain hope for a better future.

Child Welfare

NCCD believes that every child deserves to be safe and supported at home and in the community. NCCD
works with families and child wélfare agencies to help protect children from abuse and neglect, and to improve
permanency in the home.

Adult Protective Services

NCCD helps adult protective services (APS) agencies use research as the basis for APS decisions through the
implementation of research-based and structured assessments. Identifying adults who are at high risk of subsequent
maltreatment or self-neglect may help workers target engagement efforts more effectively toward those adults most in
need of long-term services. :

Education

NCCD is committed to promoting social sysiems based on the principles of equality and fairness, which value
human rights and the dignity of every human being. Reform and system change are needed to ensure that all people
have access 1o equal academic, economic, political, and social opportunities.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Method

The financial statements of NCCD have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes
income in the period earned and expenses when incurred, regardless of the timing of payments.



NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
{4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates at the date of the
transactions. When settlement of a transaction occurs, a foreign currency transaction gain or loss may result based on
the net change in the exchange rate between the transaction date and the settlement date. Foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities are retranslated to the functional currency, U.S. dollar, using the exchange rate in effect at the
balance sheet date. Losses from foreign currency transactions are reported on the statements of functional expenses.

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

NCCD adopted the Accounting Standard Update 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 938): Presemation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, which requires reporting information regarding its financial position and
activities according to two classes of net assets, as applicable: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with
donor restrictions.

¢ Net assets without donor restrictions include those asseis over which the Board of Directors has
discretionary control in carrying out the operations of NCCD.

e Net assets with donor restrictions include those assets subject to donor restrictions and for which the
applicable restrictions were not met as of the end of the current reporting period. Some doner-imposed
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates the resources be maintained in perpetuity. When a donor restriction expires — that is, when a
stipulated time restrictions ends or purpose restriction is accomplished — net assets with donor restrictions
are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net
assets released from restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized as revenue when they are unconditionally communicated. Grants represent
contributions if resource providers receive no value in exchange for the assets transferred. Conditional donations are
recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions are recorded at their fair
value as support without donor restrictions or support with donor restrictions, depending on the absence or existence of
donor-imposed restrictions as applicable. '

Contributions received from donors that direct NCCD to distribute the contributed assets, the return on
investment on those assets, or both to a specified unaffiliated beneficiary are recognized as revenue if the donor
explicitly grants NCCD: variance power, or the unilateral power to redirect the use of the transferred assets to another
beneficiary.

Government contracts, which are funded on a cost-reimbursement basis, are generally deemed to be exchange
transactions and are therefore not treated as contributions. Revenues from such activities are shown as unrestricted
revenue in the statements of activities. Included in government contracts are federal awards from the U.S. Department
of Justice, which comprised 1% and 8% of total support and revenue in 2018 and 2017, respectively.



! NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
{4 New York Nonprofit Public Bencfit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Contributed services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that required specialized skills, are provided
by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are
recorded at their estimated fair value.

Cash

Cash is defined as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. NCCD occasionally maintains
cash on deposit at a bank in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. The uninsured cash balance was
approximately $3,333,000 as of June 30, 2018. NCCD has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

deconnis Receivable

Receivables consist of costs incurred that exceed reimbursements received on cost-reimbursement grants,
whether billed or not and revenue earned from consulting contracts and program subscriptions but not collected.

NCCD records an allowance for doubtful collections based on a review of outstanding receivables, historical
collection information, and existing economic conditions. The allowance for doubtful collections was $50,000 as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Invesiments

Under generally accepted accounting principles, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price} in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. :

Generally accepted accounting principles establish a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair
value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the
most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of NCCD. Uncbservable inputs, if
any, reflects the NCCD's assumption about the inputs market participants would use in. pricing the asset or liability
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The fair value hierarchy is categorized into
three levels based on the inputs as follows: -

Leve! | — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
NCCD has the ability to access at measurement date. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not
applied to Level 1 securities. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly
available in an active market, valuation of these securities does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

Level 2 — Valuations based on significant inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly or quoted
prices in markets that are not active, that is, markets in which there are few transactions, the prices are not
current or price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers.

Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

The availability of valuation techniques and observable inputs can vary from security to security and is
affected by a wide variety of factors, including the type of security, whether the security is new and not yet established
in the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To the extent that valuation is based on models
or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires maore judgment.
Those estimated values do not necessarily represent the amounts that may be ultimately realized due to the occurrence
of future circumstances that cannot be reasonably determined. Because of the inherent uncertainty of vatuation, those
estimated- values may be materially higher or lower than the values that would have been used had a ready market for
the securities existed.
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NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
(4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Property and Equipment and Deferred Costs

Property and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, or fair market value if donated. The costs of
maintenance and repairs are charged to expenses as incurred. Depreciation is computed based on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Deferred costs are incurred for the maintenance of the software licenses obtained from a software company.
The costs are stated at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over the 2-year term of the financing agreement.

The useful lives of the assets are estimated as follows:

Building and improvements 5t0 25 years -
Furniture 3 1o 15 years
Computer and office equipment 3 to 5 years

Deferred costs on software license maintenance 2 years

Income Taxes

NCCD is exempt from federal income taxes under section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code and the
related New York, Wisconsin and California code sections.

NCCD believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any
uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements. NCCD’s federal and state information returns for the
years 2014 through 2017 are subject to examination by regulatory agencies, generally for three years and four years
after they were filed for federal and state, respectively.

Functional Expenses Allocation

The costs of providing program services and supporting services are summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities and statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs are allocated among program
services and supporting services.

Subseguent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 17, 2019, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are summarized as follows:

2018 2017
Grants receivable $ 2909185 § 2487650
 Less allowance for doubtful accounts (50,000) {50,000)
Net grants receivable 2,859,185 2,437,650
Unbilled ’ 1,039,815 924,214
Other © 532 102

Total $ 3,899,532 $§ 3,361,966




NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
{4 New York Nonprofir Public Benefit Corporation) -
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

In 2017 and 2016, NCCD accepted a conditional contribution in the amount of $200,000 and $331,133, .
respectively, [n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the contribution will be recognized when the
conditions are met. Accordingly, through the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, NCCD had recognized contributions
revenue of $500,000 and $271,030, respectively. The remaining 331,133 will be recognized when the conditions are
met, ’ .

NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following financial instruments are valued using Level 1 inputs:

2018 2017.
Quoted Prices in Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Active Markets
v Jfor Identical Jor ldentical
_ Assets Assets
Cost (Level 1) Cost {Level 1}
Mutual funds g 225899 % 227462 | § 225899 § 234,910

The following financial instruments are valued using Level 3 inputs:

2018 2017
Significant Significant
Unobservable |* Unobservable
Inputs Inputs
Cost (Level 3) Cost (Level 3)
Beneficial interest in perpetuél trust $ 193,425 § 226,729 | $ 189330 § 221,953

The following table sets forth the detailed changes in fair value for NCCD’s Level 3 financial instruments;

2018, 2017
Beginning balance $ 221,953 § 207,102
Realized and unrealized gain 4,776 14,851
Ending balance _ $ 226,729 § 221,953

NCCD was named as a beneficiary in a perpetual trust (the Trust) held by PNC Bank, N.A (Trustee).
According to the trust agreement, the corpus of the Trust is to be held by the Trustee and the Trustee is to make
installment distributions of 10% of the net income derived from the Trust to NCCD in perpetuity. Variance power has
been granted 1o the Trustee which gives the Trustee power to redirect distributions of income to another named
beneficiary nonprofit organization in the event that NCCD ceases to exist. Additionally, the Trust is subject to the
" Trustee’s investment and spending policies, NCCD reports the fair value of their portion of the Trust as Beneficial
Interest in Perpetual Trust in the statements of financial position as net assets with donor restrictions, while
distributions received and changes in the value of the Trust are tlassified as net assets without denor restrictions and net
assets with donor restrictions, respectively, and are reported as fnvestment Income in the statements of activities.

‘¢



NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
{4 New York Nonprofit Public Bencfil Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

The beneficial interest in assets held by the Trustee has been valued, as a practical expedient, at the fair value
of NCCD’s share of the corpus (17% as of June 30, 2018 and 2017) as of the measurement date, utilizing valuations
provided by the investment funds. The Trustee values securities and other financial instruments on a fair value basis of
accounting. The estimated fair values of certain invesiments of the Trustee, which includes private placements and other
securities for which prices are not readily available, are determined by the management of the Trustee and may not
reflect amounts that could be realized upon immediate sale, nor amounts that ultimately may be realized. Accordingly,
the estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed
for these investments.

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment is summarized as follows:

2018 2017
l.and 3 683,000 §% 683,000
Building and improvements 2,025,500 2,044,311
Furniture 376,587 351,598
Computer and office equipment 1,677,224 1,175,037

4,762,311 4,253,946
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,485,862) (2,154,353)
Total property and equipment $ 2276449 § 2099593

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $331,509 and $204,249, respectively.

NOTE 6 - NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are secured by the Wisconsin property unless otherwise noted and consist of the following:

2018 2017

Chase Bank construction loan in the original amount of $249,000, bears 4.09%

interest rate. Requires monthly payment of $3,530 with the entire principal

and interest due on February 1, 2020. Interest expense was $3,568 and $6,857

for 2018 and 2017, respectively. s 72,036 $ 110,831
Chase Bank mortgage loan in the original amount of $1,700,000, bears 4.75%

interest rate. Requires monthly payment of $13,309 with the entire principal

and interest due on July 20, 2027. Interest expense was 560,332 and $67,043

for 2018 and 2017, respectively. The loan contains a debl covenant requiring

an evaluation at the end of each year. The debt service coverage ratio shall not

be less than 1.05 to 1.00. The bank waived the covenant as of June 30, 2018. 1,180,920 1,280,296
Total : 1,252,956 1,391,127
Less: current portion {146,766) (140,225)
Long~term portion $ 1,106,190 § 1,250,902




NAT]ONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
{4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Principal payments on notes payable for the next five years are estimated as follows:

2019 $ 146,766
2020 142,983
2021 _ 116,846
2022 122,519
2023 128,467
Thereafter §95,375

NOTE 7- LEASE COMMITMENTS

NCCD leases office space under non-cancelable leases accounted for as operating leases in Oakland,
California, and Washington, D.C. On October |, 2018, NCCD relocated and entered into a lease agreement for a new
Qakland office, with a 5-year term expiring on November 30. 2023. The old Oakland office, with a lease expiring on
November 30, 2019, was sublet to a tenant commencing on October 1, 2018 through the expiration of the lease
agreement. The month-to-month lease on the Washington, D.C. office was terminated in May 2017.

Total payments due under the operating leases are amortized monthly over the lives of the amended leases
using the straight-line method. The difference between the recognition of rental expense under the straight-line method
and actual cash payments is reflected as deferred rent in the accompanying statements of financial position. Rental
expense was $359,943 and $403,073 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Deferred rent as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $50,297 and $76,999, respectively.

NCCD leases certain office equipment under capital leases. The lease agreements contain a bargain purchase
option at the end of the lease term. The economic substance of the leases is that NCCD is financing the acquisition of
the assets through the' leases. and accordingly, these are recorded in NCCD’'s assets and liabilities. The amount
capitalized under these agreements was $227,879. As of June 30, 2018, accumulated amortization with respect to these
assets was $52,138. Amortization of assets held under capital leases is included with depreciation expense, Interest
expense from the capital leases was $7,057 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases and operating leases are as follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2019 $ 64,164 § 418,161
2020 64,164 375,132
2021 37,124 269,591
2022 31,716 277,679
2023 - ¢ 286,009
Thereafter - 120,045
Total minimum lease payments 197,168 § 1,746,617
Less: amount representing interest (12,876)
Present vatlue of minimum lease payments ‘ 184,292
Less: current portion {57,345)
Long-term portion $ 126,447



NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

<

NOTE 8 - DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of the following:

‘ 2018 2017
Unearned subscriptions ‘P . A 716,937 § 659,921
Unearned contract income 1,836,413 1,251,225
Total deferred revenue § 2553350 § 1,911,146

(M NCCD provides subscription services for its Safemeasures reporting tool, and assessment and supervision strategy
systems such as the Juvenile Assessment and Intervention System (JAIS), Correctional Assessment and
Intervention System (CAIS), and Structured Decision Making {$SDM). Unearned subscriptions consist of program
subscriptions collected in advance of providing the related service and are recognized over the duration of the
subscription.

) UJnearned contract income consists of amounts advanced under cost-reimbursement grants that exceed costs
incurred and fee-for-service contracts that exceed revenue earned prior to completion of the contract deliverables.

Upon completion of contract deliverables, any remaining revenue in excess of costs incurred is recognized as
income. .

NOTE 9 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are for the following purposes or periods:

2018

Realized and
Releases from  Unrealized

June 30, 2017 Contributions Restrictions Gain " June 30, 2018

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose: ‘

Adult Criminal Justice $ 95395 § - (9,247) § - % 86,148

Juvenile Justice 296,594 451,470 - (241,508) - 506,556

Child Welfare 24] - - - 241
Not subject to spending policy or

appropriation:

Beneficial interest in perpetual trust 221,953 - - 4,776 226,729

$ 614,185 $ 451,470 § (250,755) § 4,776 . 5 819,674




NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
{4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2018 AND 2017

2017

Realized and
Releases from  Unrealized

June 30, 2016 Contributions Restrictions Gain June 30, 2017

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose:

Adult Criminal Justice $ 131,321 % 87,500 $§ (123,426) § - § 95395

Juvenile Justice + 551,079 171,030 {425,515) - 296,594

Child Welfare 37,326 - (37,085) - 241
Not subject to spending policy or

appropriation:

Beneficial interest in perpetual trust 207,102 - - 14,851 221,953

$ 926828 § 258,530 $ (586,026) § 14,851 § 614,183

NOTE 10 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date comprise the
following:

2018 2017
Financial assets at end of year::
Cash . $ 3,567,084 § 2258382
_ Grants receivable, net 2,859,185 2,437,650
Other receivable 532 102
Investments 227,462 234,910
6,654,263 4,931,044
Less financial assets not available for general expenditures:
Cash subject to expenditure for specific purpose (592,945) (392,230)
Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year $ 6061318 § 4538814

The above net financial assets available for general expenditures include $2,553,350 and $1,911,146 in
deferred revenue which had not been earned as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

As a part of NCCD’'s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its
general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. NCCD has a goal to maintain financial assets, which
consist of cash and short-term investments, on hand to meet normal operating expenses. [n addition, NCCD invests cash
in excess of daily requirements in mutual funds as short-term investments. However, some financial assets must be
maintained to meet NCCD’s responsibilities to its donors. Accordingly, NCCD maintains resources subject to
expenditure for specific purpose in cash and highly liquid assets.
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NOTE 11 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of expenses by
function. Certain categories of expenses are attributed to more than one program or supporting function that require
consistent allocation on a reasonable basis. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, benefits, payroll
taxes, supplies, copying and printing, communications, postage and shipping, occupancy costs, equipment, and
miscellaneous expenses. These expenses have been allocated on the basis of the billable amount of a function over the
total billable amount of all functions. Total billable amount is employees’ actual time charges multiplied by their
respective billing rates.

NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLAN

NCCD maintains two retirement plans that benefit employees, the Pension Plan and the 403(b) Plan.

NCCD provides all the funding for the Pension Plan quarterly. Employees become eligible for a share, based
on a percentage of their eligible compensation (8.75% of compensation within the FICA base and an additional 5.70%
of compensation above the FICA base for the year ended June 30, 2017), of the contribution made by NCCD upon
completion of one year of service with at least 1,000 hours worked. Employees vest in their share of the contributions
received from NCCD ratably over five years of service, beginning with the second year of service, with employment for
at least 1,000 hours during each fiscal year. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, NCCD incurred pension plan
expenses totaling $504,917 and $557,962, respectively.

Employees of NCCD fund the 403(b) Plan. NCCD allows its eligible employees to defer a portion of their
compensation into a defined contribution plan under section 403(b) of the IRC. NCCD does not contribute to the 403(b}
Plan. -

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In 2008, NCCD entered into a collaboration agreement with a computer manufacturing and software company
to develop and market a product module related to NCCD's SDM program. The agreement provides for the allocation
of revenue from the license sales of the product module between NCCD and the software company. Due to uncertainties
in the determination of the amount to be received from the software company, no royalty income was recognized for the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

In 2018, NCCD reached a settlement with a software company for the use of its software licenses and
maintenance of such licenses. NCCD agreed to pay $500,009 for the software licenses and $321,399 for the
maintenance costs, for a total of $821,408. The cost of the software licenses is required 10 be paid in September 2018.
The maintenance costs are required to be paid in 8 quarterly payments starting in September 2018. As of June 30, 2018,
the outstanding liability was $821,408. ' '



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
(4 New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDEIl{AL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-

>
Federal  Agency or
. CFDA  Pass-Through Federal  Expenditures to
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title  Number Number Expenditures  Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Justice:

Direct Awards:
OVW Technical Assistance: Initiative 16.526 $ 176,8136 b -

AN

Pass-through awards from Contra Costa County,
Employment and Human Services Department:
Services for Trafficking Victims 16.320 ‘ 7,895 -

Total U.S. Department of Justice 184,731 -

Corporation for National and Community Service:

Direct Award:
Social Innovation Fund Pay for Success 94.024 314,060 -

U.S Department of Health and Human Services:

Pass-through awards from New Mexico Children,
Youth and Families Department:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State
Administered Programs 93.566 177,490 -

Pass-through awards from California Department of
Sacial Services:
Title 1V-E Foster Care 93.658 X 364,689 -

Pass-through awards from Florida Department of
Children and Families: i
Title IV-E Foster Care - 93.658 23,962 . -

Pass-through awards from Riverside Counfy:
Title 1V-E Foster Care 93.658 9,305 -

Pass-through awards from Maine Department of
Health and Human Services: .
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 155,212 -

Pass-through awards from Connecticut Department of
Children and Families:
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 192,948 -

Pass-through awards from District of Columbia
Department of Human Services:
Special Programs for the Aging _ Title IV_ and

Title 11 _ Discretionary Grants .93.048 ' 65,120 -
Total Li.S. Department of Health and
Human Services 988,726 -
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $ 1,207,517  § -




NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
(A New York Nonprafit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the federal grant
activities of National Council on Crime & Delinquency and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Thercfore, some amounts presented in this Schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The purpose of the Schedule is to present a summary of
those activities of National Council on Crime & Delinquency for the year ended June 30, 2018, which have been
financed by the U.S. Government. For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all federal assistance entered
into directly and indirectly between National Council on Crime & Delinquency and the federal government. National
Council en Crime & Delinquency did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement,
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NATIONAL COUNCIL ON CRIME & DELINQUENCY
(A New York Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section 1 — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal contro! over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
1o be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported
Nencompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X  No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

accordance with Section 200.516 of the Uniform Guidance? Yes X No
Identification of major programs: Name of Federal Program or Cluster
CFDA #93.658 Title 1V-E Foster Care
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between ‘ .
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ' X Yes No

Section 11 - Financial Statement Findings

None noted.

Section HI — Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.

21
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Anditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Nationa! Council on Crime & Delinquency, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 17, 2019, h

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered National Council on Crime &
Delinquency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control} to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatemeni of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. 3

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracis and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounis. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s
internal control or en compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s internal contrel and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

. élu%mf o Hten. ,,,,e/?, LLP

January 17, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDRITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Report on Compliance for Fach Major Federal Program

We have audited National Council on Crime & Delinquency's compliance, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
National Council en Crime & Delinquency’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. National
Council on Crime & Delinquency’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Muanagement's Responsibifity

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its major federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibiliry

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of National Council on Crime &
Delinquency’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
. program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on National Council on Crime & Delinquency's
compliance.
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QOpinion on Each Major Federal Program

1n our epinion, National Council on Crime & Delinquency complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of National Council on Crime & Delinquency is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered National Council on Crime & Delinquency’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemnal control over compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of National Council on Crime &
Delinquency’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliunce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and cormrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

QOur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in iaternal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified. :

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report.is not suitable for any other purpose.

Om,%mf, s Pt ol foyer 41T

January 17, 2019
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

% Paid from Amount Paid from

Name Job Title Salary this Contract this Contract
Raelene Freitag International/Special Projects | $122,888
Manager
Phil Decter Director of Child Welfare $154,743
Chris Scharenbroch Associate Director of Research | $111,780
Andrea Bogie Researcher $69,731

Katie Press (Nachman) | Researcher $53,460




PHILIP DECTER, MSW
426 S. Yellowstone Drive
Madison, WI 53719
(800) 306-6223
pdecter@nccdglobal.org

EXPERIENCE

INTERIM DIRECTOR OF CHILD WELFARE
2017 - Present
National Council on Crime and Delinquency

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR
2014-2017

SENIOR PROGRAM SPECIALIST

2011-2014

« . Currently directing remote team of consultants while providing organizational consultation,
training and project management to child welfare jurisdictions around the US and
internationally. This work includes efforts to integrate family-centered practice approaches
with evidence-based assessment systems and then evaluating these efforts.

Other responsibilities include:

e Performing consultations with leaders in child welfare jurisdictions on program, staff and
organizational development

» Writing proposals, responding to request for proposals (RFP’s) and developing new business
for the organization

» Creating individualized curriculum and leading trainings within different child welfare
jurisdictions |

+ Co-developing evaluation plans for these system reform efforts

Current projects include: Consultation with multiple counties in California, Colorado, New
Mexico, Queensland, Australia; Manitoba, Canada and others.

CONSULTANT, TRAINER, AND COACH

2004-2011

Massachusetts Department of Children and Families

« Developed curriculum and provided training for managers, supervisors, and workers at
Massachusetts’s child welfare agency. In particular, co-developed multiple workshops and a
coaching approach for integrating practice and structured assessments.




ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR AND FACULTY

2004-2011

Family-Centered Services Project, Watertown, MA

e Engaged with mental health, child welfare, corrections, and other public and nonprofit
agencies in developing trainings for strength-based, family-centered practices, and the
organizational structures needed to support them.

INDEPENDENT CLINICAL PRACTICE

1997-2011

» Provided individual, child, adolescent, couple, and family counseling in private practice
setting. Clients were from a diverse range of ethnic, cultural, and socio-economic
backgrounds.

DIRECTOR OF FAMILY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

2002-2004

Brighton-Allston Mental Health Association '

» Created linkages and joint projects between local community agencies and this community
mental health center around suicide prevention, group work for survivors of domestic
violence, and the provision of in-home services to children and families.

PROGRAM DIRECTOR

2001

The Home for Little Wanderers

e Managed start-up of sibling foster care program (“Sib-Links") that supported foster
caregivers in keeping sibling groups of three or more together.

TEAM LEADER AND CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKER

1997-2001

» Co-founded psychiatric hospital diversion and aftercare service for children and adolescents
with major mental illness and behavioral disorders based at The Cambridge Hospital. Service
provided short-term intensive individua!l and family therapy to children and families within their
home and community.




EDUCATION

Simmons College School of Social Work (in process, expected 2013}
Candidate for PhD in social work

Simmons College School of Social Work (1996)
MS in social work

Tufts University (1994)
MA in applied early childhood development

Tufts University/School of the Museum of Fine Arts Joint Program (1992)
. Bachelor of Fine Arts

PUBLICATIONS

2010 Chin, S., Decter, P, Madsen, W., & Vogel, J. Action Learning Groups: Enhancing
Worker Judgment in Risk Assessment Through Facilitated Dialogues. Accepted
for publication in an upcoming issue of Protecting Children.

2008 Decter, P, & Buckley, E. The Hot Seat: An Exercise in Learning Narrative Practice.
The International Journal of Narrative Therapy and Community Work, 2, 3-12.

2006 Buckley, E., & Decter, P. From Isolation to Community: Collaborating with children
and families in times of crisis. The International Journal of Narrative Therapy and
Community Work, 2, 3-12.




CHRISTOPHER SCHARENBROCH
- 426 S. Yellowstone Drive
Madison, W1 53719
(800) 306-6223
‘¢scharenbroch@ncedglobal.org

EDUCATION

University of Wisconsin—-Madison (2001)
8BS in sociology, concentration in analysis and research

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF RESEARCH ANALYTICS
2017 - Present
National Council on Crime and Delinquency, Madison, Wisconsin

ANALYTICS PROGRAM MANAGER
2016-2017

SENIOR RESEARCH ASSOCIATE/RESEARCH ANALYST
2001-2016
National Council on Crime and Delinquency, Madison, Wisconsin

o Conducts risk assessment and evaluation studies. Develops and performs statistical analyses.
Generates reports to communicate methodology and results. Consults with clients regarding
translation of research questions into hypotheses for testing, as well as meaning and

implications of findings.

RESEARCH INTERN
2000-2001
Rural Sociology, University of Wisconsin-Madison

s Assisted in multidisciplinary research regarding agricultural potlution and management
behavioral practices. Analyzed statistical data using SPSS software and produced two
extensive reports including graphs, tables, and summaries for separate magazine publishers.
Managed data collection and participated in survey construction and interviewing. Also co-

authored peer-review journal article.




SELECTED PUBLICATIONS/REPORTS

2013

2010

2010

2009

2007

2006

2004

Baird, C., Johnson, K., Healy, T, Bogie, A,, Wicke Dankert, E., &
Scharenbroch, C. A comparison of risk assessment instruments in juvenile
Jjustice. Madison, WI: National Council on Crime and Delinquency.

Scharenbroch, C, Healy, T, Johnson, K., & Wagner, D. Santa Cruz County
Human Resotrces Agency special topic report on early reunification: A
validation of the preliminary concurrent planning assessment. Madison, Wi:
NCCD Children's Research Center.

Wagner, D., O'Conner, D., Scharenbroch, C., & Coenen, K. Maryland
Department of Human Resources evaluation of safety and risk assessment
practice at intake. Madison, WI: NCCD Children’s Research Center.

: \
Scharenbroch, C. New South Wales Department of Community Services
pre-implementation examination of a risk assessment’s ability to classify
families by the likelihood of subsequent child protective services
involvement. Madison, WI: NCCD Children’s Research Center.

Johnson, K., Wagner, D., & Scharenbroch, C. California Department of
Social Services Children and Family Services Division risk assessment .
validation: A prospective study. Madison, WI: NCCD Children’s Research
Center. ‘

Johnson, K., Wagner, D., Scharenbroch, C,, & Healy, T. Minnesota
Department of Human Services risk assessment validation: A prospective
study. Madison, WI: NCCD Children’s Research Center.

Johnson, K., Wagner, D., Scharenbroch, C. New Mexico Children, Youth and
Families Department prospective validation of the juvenile justice risk
assessment. Madison, WI: NCCD Children's Research Center.




ANDREA L. BOGIE
426 S. Yellowstone Drive
Madison, WI 53719
(800) 306-6223
abogie@nccdglobal.org

EDUCATION

Syracuse University School of Social Work -
- MSW, concentration in community organization, policy, planning, and administration (2005)

University of Wisconsin—-Madison
BS in psychology and social welfa!re (2000}

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE”

RESEARCHER

2005 - Present

National Council on Crime and Delinquency

» Provides analytics, technical assistance, evaluation, and consulting services to social services
agencies and schools. Conducts evaluation studies under contract to federal/state/local
agencies. Provides custom data collection and report writing services to NCCD clients.

INTERN

2004-2005

Onondaga County Department of Aging and Youth

* Assisted in the development and implementation of programs for older adults in Onondaga
County, New York. Researched potential programs and their impact on both the larger
community and older adults in the community. Assisted with proposal writing, budget
management, and the evaluation of programs. A

INTERN

2003-2004

Catholic Chanties Refugee Resettlement Program

e Assisted in resettling newly arrived refugees, completing mental health assessments, and
referring services when appropriate. Explored refugee policies and the effect of such policies
on the agency. '




COMMUNITY SUPPORT WORKER
2002-2003
Adapt of Missouri

Empowered and assisted adults with persistent mental ilinesses who were learning to live
independently in the community. Assisted clients in locating housing, securing rental
subsidies, and facilitating landlord/client relations. Partnered with families to develop
successful community inteération strategies.

CAMP DIRECTOR
2002-2002
Camp Norcago/Northwestern University Settlement Association

Trained and supervised staff, organized and ran parent information sessions, and worked
alongside the counselors on all trips and at the week-long residential camp in Wisconsin.
Developed program goals surrounding diversity and implemented them during Camp
Norcago trips. Kept updated records to comply with Illinois Department of Human Services
standards.

VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR
2001-2002
AmeriCorps Project YES!

Expanded the impact of Project YES! and encouraged volunteerism by increasing'the
number of community members involved in Project YES! activities in West Town, Chicago.
Organized community volunteer projects and gatherings such as a community Thanksgiving
dinner, haunted house, the West Town Community Health Fair, and the annual volunteer
dinner. Led AmeriCorps Project YES! members in developing community service projects and
engaging community members in events such as Make a Difference Day, Martin Luther King
Day, and National Volunteer Week.

CORPS TEACHER
2000-2001

Organized and implemented educational activities to enhance or support core curriculum in
two Head Start classes. Implemented out-of-classroom programming and taught afterschool
programming to supptement lesson plans. Planned volunteer projects, established long-term
educational activities, wrote grants and obtained funds to start projects, and mobilized
children and community members to carry them out.




SELECT PUBLICATIONS

2015

2014

2014

2013

2013

2012

2012

2011

2009

Wicke Dankert, E, & Bogie, A. Preliminary risk assessment fit analysis of the SDM
family risk assessment. Madison, WI: National Council on Crime and
Delinquency.

Johnson, K, Bogie, A., & Russell, ). Improving child safety and well-being in
foster and relative placements: Findings from a joint study of foster child
maltreatment. Madison, WI: National Council on Crime and Delinquency.

Johnson, K, Bogie, A, Kerwin, C, Fischer, S, & Stellrecht, A. Developing an
actuarial index for child exposure to traurna. Madison, Wi: National Council on
Crime and Delinquency. '

Johnson, K., Bogie, A, & Wicke Dankert, E. Predictive data analyses to test the
validity of the risk of recidivism assessment. Prepared for Texas Department of
Family and Protective Services. The Children’s Research Center, a center of the
National Council on Crime and Delinquency (76 pages).

Baird, C., Healy, T, Joh‘nson, K., Bogie, A, Scharenbroch, C,, & Wicke Dankert, E.
A comparison of risk assessment instruments in juvenile justice. Prepared for
Grant 2010-JR-FX-0021 from the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention, Office of Justice Programs, US Department of Justice. The National
Council on Crime and Delinquency (135 pages excluding appendixes with site-
specific findings).

Johnson, K, Park, K., Bogie, A, Flasch, S., & Cotter, J. 2012. Developing an
actuarial risk assessment to inform decisions made by adult protective services
workers. US Department of Justice Technical Report Award 2008-1J-CX-0025
(hitps.//www.ncjrs.gov/pdffiles 1/nij/grants/2404 10.pdf).

Bogie, A, Freitag, R., & Healy, T. Special topic report on domestic violence in
families served by Child Welfare Services in the State of California. Madison, WI:
Children's Research Center.

Bogie, A, Johnson, K, Ereth, J., & Scharenbroch, C. Assessing risk of future
delinquency among-children receiving child protection services. Madison, WI.
Children’s Research Center.

Johnson, K., & Bogie, A. North Carolina Department of Health and Human
Services Division of Social Services risk assessment validation: A prospective study.
Madison, WI: Children’s Research Center.



2009 Ereth, J., Gramling, S., Healy, T, 8 Bogie, A. Making the grade: Using data to
improve performance in Milwaukee’s city-chartered schools. Madison, WI:
Children's Research Center.

2007 Wisconsin Office of Justice Assistance Short Term Residential Program
assessment. NCCD Research Report.

2005 - Present  City of Milwaukee and Charter School Review Committee monitoring reports,
two to 10 charter schools per year.

2006-2011 Technical Assistance and Leadership Center (TALC) small high school
monitoring reports, 11 to 16 schools per year, for a total of 23 schools.

2007-2010 Partners Advancing Values in Education (PAVE) summer school program
monitoring reports, five schools per year.

PRESENTATIONS

e Pre-Conference Panel on Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children (NCCD Conference on
Children, Youth, and Families, 2016)

e Making Workload Work for You (NCCD Conference on Children, Youth, and Families, 2016)

. Prevehting Delinquency Among Child Welfare-Involved Youth (North Dakota Children’s
Justice Symposium, 2016)

e Actuarial Risk Assessment in Child Welfare and Beyond (National Children’s Advocacy Center
International Symposium on Child Abuse, 2016)

e Emerging Uses of Actuarial Research in Child Welfare: The Role of CPS in Preventing
Delinquency - A Great Place to Start (NCCD Conference on Children, Youth, and Families,
2011)

o Developing an Actuarial Risk Assessment in Adult Protective Services (20th Annual National
Adult Protective Services Association Conference, 2009)




KATHERINE NACHMAN
426 S. Yellowstone Drive
Madison, W| 53719
(800) 306-6223
knachman@nccdglobal.org

EDUCATION

University of Wisconsin—Madison (2016}
MA in social work

University of Wisconsin—Madison (2014)
BA in social welfare

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

RESEARCHER

05/2016 — Present

National Council on Crime and Delinquency

¢ Provides technical assistance, evaluation, analytic, and consulting services to social services

agencies; conducts evaluation studies under contract to federal/state/local agencies.

e Facilitates project coordination with study partners and advisory groups and organizes study
dissemination efforts.

e Works with state and regional juvenile justice agencies to assess programmatic processes,
decision-making supports, and data collection and management capabilities; performs
strengths and gaps analyses and makes acticnable recommendations for system
improvement.

¢  Worked with the Georgia Department of Juvenile Justice to validate the Pre-Dispositional
Risk Assessment and assess the current functioning of the Structured Dispositional Matrix.
Conducted listening sessions in various locations across the state for judges, district
attorneys, public defenders, and other stakeholders. Facilitated the secure transfer of
administrative data and performed statistical analyses to assess the accuracy, reliability,
equity, and utility of decision-making tools. Conducted webinars, in-person presentations,
and completed a written report to disseminate findings.

s Coordinated with the Nevada ACLU and the Annie E. Casey Foundation and performed an
in-depth examination of Nevada's juvenile justice system. Interviewed key stakeholders and
facilitated partnerships across organizations. Created a report summarizing findings and
recommendations for system improvement.



Partnered with the Annie. E. Casey foundation’s Juvenile Detention Alternatives Initiative to
provide technical assistance and data analysis for participating JDAI sites.

Worked with a county probation agency to create a system map and logic models,
identifying strengths and gaps in the county’s programs, policies, and processes, and the
short and long-term goals of the system.

MOBLE QOUTREACH TO SENIORS CLINICAL STUDENT
09/2015-05/2016
Journey Mental Health, Madison, WI

Provided psychotherapy and mental health case management to seniors with severe and
persistent mental illness diagnoses.

Developed and implemented a six-week cognitive behavioral therapy group for smoking
cessation, leading to a significant decrease or quitting tobacco use for clients.

Revised medication documentation materials and therapy worksheets, enhancing ease of
use and efficiency for staff and clients.

1

THIRD STREET PROGRAM STUDENT
9/2014-05/2015
YWCA-Madison, WI

Performed case management tasks including assisting clients with finding housing and
childcare, pursuing higher education goals, and discovering career opportunities.

Planned and facilitated an informational group for residents on car seat safety coordinating
and planning with YWCA staff and Madison Police Department.

ARABIC CRYPTOLOGIC LINGUIST
2005-2010
United States Marine Corps—-NSA Georgia

Personally monitored and recorded thousands of hours of real-time communications,
providing critical information to U.S. forces

Managed scheduling and mission-related tasks for a team of over 20 operators
Coordinated with personnel in other countries in order to conduct troubleshooting on
equipment

Senior qualified on two positions with over 95% accuracy

INTERNSHIPS -

DISASTER SERVICES INTERN
09/2013-01/2014
Red Cross Badger Chapter-Madison, W|



e Conducted pre-transplant and pre-donation psychosocial evaluatiohs and assessments.

o Educated patients on advanced directives, medical assistance, Medicare coverage, insurance
options, prescription coverage, and various other transplant and support resources and
programs.

» Connected patients with prescription assistance programs and facilitated program
applications.

e Worked with patients on developing pre- and post-transplant/donation recovery plans and
discharge planning. '

SKILLS

PROGRAMMING
"o R, SQL ArcGIS, Shiny, Tableau
* Proficient in data visualization, dashboards, and geospatial mapping

LANGUAGE
s Arabic

OTHER EXPERIENCE

CONFRONTING RACIAL INJUSTICE CONFERENCE PLANNING COMMITTEE
01/2016-05/2016

School of Social Work— University of Wisconsin Madison

e Coordinated timing and scheduling of conference presentations

e Recruited panelists and presenters to ensure local community representation

RACIAL JUSTICE WORKSHOP SERIES
09/2014-11/2014

YWCA-Madison, Wl

e Communicating Across Cultures: Level 100
¢ Deconstructing Racism: Level 200

¢ Exploring Privilege: Level 300




Mission Statement
NCCD promotes just and equitable
social systems for individuals, families,
and communities through research,
public policy, and practice.

We believe our best contribution to advancing justice and equity in systems is
by efevating the use of research and data'to:

- Deapen understanding of the scope of inequities at various decision
paints;

« Identify the best opportunities to improve outcomes; and

« Increase validity, reliability, and equity in decision making.

Our goal is to empower communities, decision makers, and system leaders with
the data, knowledge, and insights necessary to effect meaninglul poticy and
practice change.




